

CLASSIC CORVAIRS OF RIVER CITY BYLAWS

ARTICLE I - Club Name and Emblem:

A. The club's name is Classic Corvairs of River City hereinafter referred to as CCRC.

B. CCRC will share the emblem of the national organization, Corvair Society of America, hereinafter referred to as CORSA

ARTICLE II – Objectives:

The specific purpose of this organization is to promote education and training unique to Chevrolet Corvair automobiles, trucks and related hybrid vehicles for the preservation, enjoyment and maintenance of said vehicles. The organization provides a social and recreational forum to facilitate the exchange of ideas, information, and activities.

ARTICLE III – Membership:

A Membership in CCRC is open to Corvair owners, enthusiasts and any one interested in the Corvair or air cooled engines and the objectives of CCRC.

B. Membership: Active Members: Current, dues paying members in good standing. An active membership shall consist of the current, dues paying member in good standing and the active member's spouse or established domestic partner. The active member and the member's spouse or domestic partner shall both have the right to vote at all business meetings and shall herein be referred to as the "eligible voters". Either (or both) may hold club office.

1. In all cases where these bylaws require a vote of the membership, this vote will be held by mail among all of the active memberships. In this case, each active membership shall have only one vote

2. Any member of the active member's immediate family shall enjoy all of the privileges of active membership except for voting or holding club office.

3. Honorary Member: An active member awarded a lifetime membership by a two thirds vote of the eligible voters present at a regular meeting in recognition of their outstanding contributions to CCRC and its objectives. They are excused from payment of CCRC dues.

C. Membership dues are due and payable at the February meeting. They are delinquent at the March meeting. Amount of said dues may be changed by a majority vote at a regular business meeting.

D. Any member may be expelled by a two thirds vote of eligible voters present at a regular meeting. This shall be for infraction of CCRC or CORSA rules or for any other action that is determined not to be in the best interests of CCRC. Before such action is taken, the Secretary shall notify the member in writing of such intention, and the member shall have the opportunity to present to the eligible voters or submit in writing, either at the meeting or in the CCRC newsletter, his or her answer to the proposed expulsion.

E. Any member may resign from CCRC by written notice to the Secretary and payment of any indebtedness to CCRC.

ARTICLE IV - Meetings:

A. Regular meetings will be held on the fourth Wednesday of the month. A meeting may be changed by the board with prior notification to the membership.

B. No action may be taken at any meeting where a quorum is not present except where sufficient written ballots are available to constitute a quorum for the purposes of that action. A quorum shall consist of no less than 12 eligible voters.

C. Except as otherwise specified herein, any motion shall be adopted by a majority vote. A majority is any number greater than 50% of the eligible voters present.

D. In the absence of the Secretary at a meeting, the President will appoint a Secretary to serve for the duration of the meeting.

E. Special meetings may be called by the board to deal with special situations. Notice must be made to each active membership at least forty-eight hours prior to such meeting.

ARTICLE V - Officers:

A. The elected officers of CCRC are: President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, Membership, Activities, Newsletter Editor, and Photographer-Historian. All elected officers are to serve as board members. All officers shall be elected by a vote of the active membership.

B. The officers duties are those normally associated with those titles.

C. A normal full term of office is two years.

D. Any permanent vacancy in an elected office may be filled by election at the next regular meeting following the occurrence of the vacancy.

E. Upon nomination, Candidates who receive the highest number of votes are elected to office.

F. A person may not hold the office of President for more than two consecutive full terms.

G. Any officer may be removed from office using the procedure contained in ARTICLE III paragraph D above except that expulsion under this paragraph shall be limited to removal from office.

ARTICLE VI - Financial Obligations:

A. No Officer, Committee or member will incur debts or other liabilities on behalf of the club without prior approval of two thirds of the eligible voters present at a regular meeting.

B. Special assessments may not be levied unless approved by the board subject to the consent of two thirds of the eligible voters present at a regular meeting.

C. The Treasurer and any one of the other officers will be authorized to sign all club checks. No more than one member of the same family can be authorized to sign checks.

D. A petty cash fund of \$100 will be established, accessible to the board for club expenses. All petty cash expenses will be reported to the membership at the next general meeting.

ARTICLE VII - Board of Directors

A. The Board of Directors shall consist of the elected officers of CCRC noted in Article V paragraph A. The Board shall speak and act on behalf of CCRC. Such action shall be confirmed by a vote at the next general meeting. In cases when the Board of Directors consists of less than eight members, such as when one person holds more than one office, additional members shall be elected from the general membership to bring the number of directors up to eight

B. Board members shall serve without compensation. They shall have reimbursement of expenses incurred in the performance of their duties.

C. Regular and Annual Meetings: Regular meetings of the board will generally be held prior to the monthly general meeting at the discretion of the board. There shall be at least one annual meeting of the board each calendar year.

D. Meetings of the board shall be presided over by the President. In his/her absence, the Vice President will preside.

ARTICLE VIII Committees:

A. The President, or in his absence, the Vice President may create standing committees or ad hoc committees as need dictates.

B. Committee Chairpersons will be appointed by the President, or in his absence, the Vice President.

C. Each committee will consist of a chairperson and sufficient members to perform the task. Committee members will serve at the request of the chairperson.

D. A committee chairperson may be removed or replaced by the officer who appointed him/her or by a majority vote of the Board of Directors

ARTICLE IX Bylaws

A. Bylaws may be changed, and sections or subsections may be deleted or added with Board approval, subject to a vote by the Active Membership with the approval of a majority of the members voting being required to accept the changes.

B. Any Active Member may propose an amendment to the Bylaws by submitting it in writing to the Secretary who will cause it to be published to the active membership. Approval as described in paragraph A. above is required for acceptance.

ARTICLE X Dissolution of the club

In the event of dissolution, disbandment, inactivation or any other termination of CCRC, all funds, property, parts and other assets in excess of any recognized liability will be disposed of in accordance with a decision of eligible voters present at the final general meeting in accordance with the rules governing non-profit organizations. A majority decision by eligible voters present at the last general meeting shall be sufficient to determine action. Execution of these actions shall be the responsibility of the President and the Vice President.

This revision of the Bylaws accepted at the monthly meeting May 22nd 2013